THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE SUPREME COURT

RECEIVED

NOV 30 2017

APPEAL FROM THE S.C. COURT OF APPEALS
APPELLATE CASE NO. 2014-001051

S.C. SUPREME COURT

APPELLATE CASE NO. 2017-002108

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA,

RESPONDENT(S)

Vs.

JOSEPH TODD ROWLAND,

PETITIONER(S)

PETITION FOR WRIT OF CERTIORARI

JOSEPH TODD ROWLAND
#290065 WANDO B-239
LIEBER C.I. P.O. BOX 205
RIDGEVILLE, S.C. 29472
PETITIONER(S)

TABLE-OF-AUTHORITIES

FOR THE TABLE OF AUTHORITIES SEE EXHIBIT GOURDINE # 2
PAGES I THROUGH XI.

STATEMENT-OF-ISSUES-IN-CERTIORARI

(1) DID THE APPEALS COURT ERR, AND WAS THE PETITIONER'S 5th., 6th., 14th. AMENDMENT RIGHTS OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION VIOLATED, AS WELL AS ARTICLE IV § 2, AND HIS DUE PROCESS RIGHTS VIOLATED, INCLUDING THE COURT'S JURISDICTION BEING MADE VOID FOR THAT DUE PROCESS VIOLATION, DUE TO THE FRAUD RELATED TO THE STATE COMPROMISING MY HIRED COUNSEL AND JUDGE ALISON LEE SITTING ON THIS CASE WHEN SHE IS A DEFENDANT IN CASES PENDING BEFORE THE FEDERAL COURT INVOLVING THE PETITIONER AND HIS CO-PETITIONERS, REQUIRING THE S.C. SUPREME COURT TO NOW ALLOW FULL REVIEW OF ALL ISSUES OF CONCERN THAT THE PETITIONER WAS DEPRIVED OF HEARING DUE TO THE STRUCTURAL ERROR THAT EXIST IN CASE 2014-001051?

(2) DID THE APPEALS COURT ERR, AND ABUSED THEIR DISCRETION , AND WAS THE PETITIONER'S 6th. AND 14th. AMENDMENT RIGHTS OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION VIOLATED, AS WELL AS ARTICLE IV § 2, AND HIS DUE PROCESS RIGHTS VIOLATED, BY DENYING THE FIDUCIARY HEIR, JAHJAH AL MAHDI, ENTRY INTO THE APPEAL PROCESS TO PROTECT HIS ACQUIRED INTEREST UNDER THE FOREIGN SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY ACT DUE TO THE LITIGATION PRESENTED IN BOTH EXHIBIT(S) "TRUSTEE" AND "FOREIGN SOVEREIGN" WHICH VOID THEIR JURISDICTION FOR FRAUD UPON THE COURT AND DUE PROCESS VIOLATION?

(3) DID THE APPEALS COURT ERR, AND ABUSED THEIR DISCRETION, ACTING AS LEGISLATORS, NOT JUDGES, AND WAS THE PETITIONER'S 4th., 6th. AND 14th. AMENDMENT RIGHTS OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION

VIOLATED, AS WELL AS ARTICLE IV § 2, AND HIS DUE PROCESS RIGHTS VIOLATED, WHEN THE STATE WAS PERMITTED TO ESTABLISH THE CHAIN OF CUSTODY BY TESTIMONY ALONE, STRIPPING DEFENDANTS OF DUE PROCESS PROTECTIONS WHERE THERE ARE ALLEGATIONS OF THE PLANTING OF EVIDENCE, WHICH COULD HAVE BEEN DIMINISHED OR PREVENTED HAD THE STATE COURTS ADHERED TO THE STATUTORY PROVISIONS PLACED INTO EFFECT BY THE STATE LEGISLATORS, CAUSING EXTREME PREJUDICE TO THE PETITIONER'S DUE PROCESS MATTERS IN VIOLATION OF THE EQUAL PROTECTION OF THE LAWS CLAUSE?

(4) DID THE APPEALS COURT ERR IN THEIR DETERMINATION, AND DID THEY ABUSE THEIR DISCRETION, AND WAS THE PETITIONER'S 4th., 6th., AND 14th. AMENDMENT RIGHTS OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION VIOLATED, AS WELL AS ARTICLE IV § 2, AND HIS DUE PROCESS RIGHTS VIOLATED, BY THE COURT(S) VALIDATING THE SEARCH WARRANT AS IS ARGUED IN EXHIBIT(S) "SEARCH WARRANTS #'S 1 AND 2?

(5) DID THE TRIAL COURT ERR, AND WAS THE PETITIONER'S 5th., 6th., 14th., 15th. AMENDMENT RIGHTS OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION VIOLATED, AS WELL AS ARTICLE IV § 2, AND HIS DUE PROCESS RIGHTS VIOLATED, REGARDING THE INDICTMENT(S) AS CONSTRUCTED, BY THE LANGUAGE AND OR CHARGE CONTAINED THEREIN, WHICH DID CREATE AND OR FORM CONCLUSIVE PRESUMPTION(S), THAT TOOK AWAY THE PETITIONER'S PRESUMPTION OF INNOCENCE, AND AUTOMATICALLY SHIFT THE BURDEN OF PERSUASION TO THE DEFENDANT, IN REGARD TO THE CRUCIAL ELEMENTS OF DISPUTE, PREDETERMINING IN ADVANCE THE OUTCOME OF THE PROCEEDINGS?

(6) DID THE TRIAL COURT ERR, AND WAS THE PETITIONER'S 5th., 6th., 14th. AMENDMENT RIGHTS OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION VIOLATED, AS WELL AS ARTICLE IV § 2, AND HIS DUE PROCESS RIGHTS VIOLATED, BY THE INDICTMENT FOR TRAFFICKING COCAINE'S FAILURE TO PROPERLY ALLEGE THE DRUG AMOUNTS AND THE SUB SECTION THE PETITIONER IS SAID TO HAVE VIOLATED; THE INDICTMENT FOR POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO DISTRIBUTE MARIJUANA'S FAILURE TO PROPERLY LIST THE DRUG AMOUNT AND SUB SECTION ALLEGED TO HAVE BEEN VIOLATED; THE INDICTMENT FOR POSSESSION OF A FIREARM DURING THE COMMISSION OF A VIOLATE CRIME ALLEGING, "DID POSSESS A .45 CALI-

BER HANDGUN OR VISIBLY DISPLAY WHAT APPEARED TO BE A KNIFE DURING THE COMMISSION, OR ATTEMPTED COMMISION, OF TRAFFICKING***", GIVING WAY TO CONSTRUCTIVE AMENDMENT OF THE INDICTMENTS, IN THE BODY OF THE CHARGING INSTRUMENT?

(7) DID THE TRIAL COURT ERR, AND WAS THE PETITIONER'S 5th., 6th., 14th. AMENDMENT RIGHTS OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION VIOLATED, AS WELL AS ARTICLE IV § 2, AND HIS DUE PROCESS RIGHTS VIOLATED, AS WELL AS RULES OF COURT, RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE, THE S.C. CONSTITUTION, AS WELL AS THE COURT'S JURISDICTION BEING MADE VOID FOR DUE PROCESS VIOLATION, AND OR THEY WERE PROHIBITED FROM ENACTING AND OR INVOKING AND OR CONTINUING THEIR SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTIONARY "[P]OWERS" DUE TO THE "[P]ROCEDURAL [D]EFFECT" IN THAT THERE WAS NO "[W]RITTEN"(EMPHASIS ADDED) ORDER OF CONTINUANCE OBTAINED PURSUANT TO ARTICLE V § 4 OF THE SOUTH CAROLINA CONSTITUTION?

(8) DID THE TRIAL COURT ERR, AND WAS THE PETITIONER'S 5th., 6th., 14th. AMENDMENT RIGHTS OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION VIOLATED, AS WELL AS ARTICLE IV § 2, AND HIS DUE PROCESS RIGHTS VIOLATED, BY THE TRIAL COURT AND OR PLEA COURT ALLOWING CONSTRUCTIVE AMENDMENT OF THE INDICTMENT(S) AT THE PETITIONER'S TRIAL AND OR PLEA HEARING?

(9) DID THE S.C. SUPREME COURT IN STATE-v.-GENTRY-SUPRA ERR, ENGAGING KNOWINGLY, INTENTIONALLY IN ACTS OF FRAUD UPON THE COURT, IN THEIR EFFORTS TO ESSENTIALLY ESTABLISH MODERN DAY SLAVERY IN VIOLATION OF THE ANTI-PEONAGE ACT, AND ABUSED THEIR DISCRETIONARY POWERS, WHICH THEY EVEN CONSPIRED TO TAKE AWAY OUR RIGHT TO VOTE, AND OR DONE SO SURREPTITIOUSLY, IN VIOLATION OF THE VOTING RIGHTS ACT. AND IN SUCH, THE COURT'S JURISDICTION WAS MADE VOID FOR DUE PROCESS VIOLATION, AND THE COURT WAS PROHIBITED FROM ENACTING AND OR INVOKING AND OR CONTINUING ITS SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTIONARY POWERS, EVEN THOUGH THEY DO INDEED POSSESS SUCH POWER VIA STATE LEGISLATIVE STATUTES AND OR CONGRESSIONAL INTENT, DUE TO THE INDICTMENT DEFECTS ARGUED WITHIN THIS CASE, IN VIOLATION OF THE PETITIONER'S 4th., 5th., 6th., 13th., 14th., 15th. AMENDMENT RIGHTS OF THE U.S. CONSTITU-

TION, AS WELL AS ARTICLE IV § 2, ALSO 42 U.S.C. §§ 1983, 1985(2), 1985(3), 1986; 18 U.S.C. §§ 241, 242, 1001 AND THE LAWS OF DUE PROCESS?

(10) DID THE S.C. SUPREME COURT ERR, AND ABUSED THEIR DISCRETION, AND WAS THE PETITIONER AS A BENEFICIARY OF "THE TRUST", AND THE FIDUCIARY HEIR AS A BENEFICIARY OF "THE TRUST", 1st., 5th., 6th., 14th. AMENDMENT RIGHTS OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION VIOLATED, AS WELL AS ARTICLE IV § 2, ALSO THEIR DUE PROCESS RIGHTS VIOLATED, AS WELL AS THE EQUAL PROTECTION OF THE LAWS CLAUSE, ALSO ARTICLE 1 SECTION 10 OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION, BY THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA VIA THE SUPREME COURT, PERMITTING SAME SEX MARRIAGE, WHEN SUCH WAS GIVEN TO THE NATIONS OF THE WORLD AS A "GRANT" WITH RESTRICTIONS THAT IS UNDER "CONTRACT" VIA THE SOLE CORPORATION, WHERE SUCH ACTION VIOLATE THE TERMS AND WOULD BURDEN THE OBLIGATION OF THE CONTRACT WHICH CANNOT BE MADE OR UNMADE BY THE COURTS; AND MUST ALL RELIEF SOUGHT VIA THE WRIT OF COMMISSION BE GRANTED?

STATEMENT-OF-THE-CASE

ON JUNE 3, 2011, THE PETITIONER WAS ARRESTED AND CHARGED WITH TRAFFICKING COCAINE 28g.-100g. S.C. CODE ANN §§ 44-53-370, PWID MARIJUANA S.C. CODE ANN. § 44-53-370, UNLAWFUL POSSESSION OF A FIREARM DURING THE COMMISSION OF A VIOLENT CRIME S.C. CODE ANN. § 16-23-490, UNLAWFUL POSSESSION OF A FIREARM BY A CONVICTED FELON S.C. CODE ANN. § 16-23-30, AND POSSESSION OF A STOLEN FIREARM S.C. CODE ANN. 16-23-30. AT THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS , CONVENED ON SEPTEMBER 12, 2011, THE PETITIONER WAS INDICTED ON THE ABOVE CHARGES BY A GRAND JURY. THE HONORABLE JUDGE ROGER M. YOUNG SR. PRESIDED OVER A JURY TRIAL ON MAY 12-13, 2014.

THE PETITIONER MOVED TO SUPPRESS THE SEARCH WARRANT ON THE BASIS THAT IT DID NOT GIVE THE MAGISTRATE INFORMATION SUFFI-

CIENT TO RISE TO A LEVEL OF PROBABLE CAUSE, AND FURTHER, THAT IT CONTAINED AN ERROR SO EGREGIOUS THAT IT FAILED AS A MATTER OF LAW. (TT.PP.70, 71). THE COURT DENIED THE PETITIONER'S MOTION TO SUPPRESS BASED ON THE TOTALITY OF THE CIRCUMSTANCES GIVING RISE TO THE LEVEL OF PROBABLE CAUSE REQUIRED. (TT.PP.74, 75).

THE PETITIONER MOVED FOR A DIRECT VERDICT AT THE CLOSE OF THE STATE'S CASE, ASSERTING THE EVIDENCE PRESENTED DID NOT SUFFICE TO CREATE A JURY ISSUE AS TO CONSTRUCTIVE POSSESSION. (TT.PP.47, 52). THE COURT DIRECTED A VERDICT OF NOT GUILTY ON THE CHARGE OF POSSESSION OF A STOLEN FIREARM S.C. CODE ANN. § 16-23-30, BUT DENIED THE PETITIONER'S DIRECT VERDICT MOTION REGARDING THE REMAINING (3) CHARGES ON THE BASIS THAT THERE WAS SUFFICIENT CIRCUMSTANCES WHICH WOULD SUPPORT A CONVICTION BASED ON CONSTRUCTIVE POSSESSION OF THE DRUGS AND A GUN DURING THE COMMISSION OF A VIOLENT CRIME. (TT.PP. 219).

THE JURY FOUND THE PETITIONER GUILTY OF TRAFFICKING COCAINE 28g.-100g. S.C. CODE ANN. § 44-53-370, PWID MARIJUANA S.C. CODE ANN. § 44-53-370, AND UNLAWFUL POSSESSION OF A FIREARM DURING THE COMMISSION OF A VIOLENT CRIME S.C. CODE ANN. § 16-23-490 AND SENTENCED THE PETITIONER TO (20) YEARS IN PRISON. (TT.PP.280, 281).

COUNSEL FOR THE PETITIONER RENEWED HIS PRETRIAL MOTIONS AND DIRECT VERDICT MOTION, AND PETITIONER ALSO MADE ADDITIONAL POST-TRIAL MOTIONS ON HIS OWN ACCORD. (TT.PP. 271-274, 281). THE PETITIONER FILED HIS NOTICE OF INTENT TO APPEAL ON MAY 15, 2014.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

THE S.C. SUPREME COURT HAS BEFORE IT WHAT MAY POTENTIALLY BE THE LARGEST, MOST COMPLEX, MOST EXTRAORDINARY CASE IN EARTH'S JUDICIAL HISTORY. ONE DEALING WITH THE EMERGENCE OF THE RIGHTFUL LOST FIDUCIARY HEIR, KING, KHALIFAH, IMAM, LAWGIVER AND HIGH PRIEST TO THE (4) THRONES OF THE RE-ESTABLISHED GLOBAL THEOCRATIC STATE, THE FULFILLING OF JEWISH, ISLAMIC AND CHRISTIAN PROPHECY, WHO WAS FRAMED FOR THE MURDER OF HIS OWN CHILD BEHIND RELIGIOUS AND RACIAL HATRED BECAUSE HE MADE THE AFORE SAID CLAIMS PRESENTED WITHIN THIS CASE. IT IS STATED UNDER LEGAL BINDING CONTRACT THAT THIS MAN FORETOLD TO COME BY THOSE RELIGIOUS PROPHECIES WOULD ESTABLISH THE KINGDOM, PURGING ALL GLOBAL BELIEVERS IN PREPARATION FOR CHRIST'S RETURN AS HIS FORERUNNER; THIS KINGDOM ALSO FORETOLD IN THE BOOK OF DANIEL CHAPTER 3. HE IS WHOM THE CHRISTIANS CALL "THE ELIJAH" OF BIBLE PROPHECY; WHOM THE MUSLIMS CALL "THE MAHDI"(MEANING THE GUIDED ONE), WHO WILL BE LED TO THE RESTING PLACE OF THE "ARK OF THE COVENANT" AND RE-BUILD THE TEMPLE IN JERUSALEM AND RULE UPON THE THRONE OF KING DAVID OF ISRAEL AS HIS DIRECT DESCENDANT. BY THE AFORESAID PROPHECIES, IT WAS ALSO FORETOLD THAT HE WOULD CAUSE THE PRISON DOORS TO OPEN AND PROCLAIM A DAY OF LIBERTY FOR THE CAPTIVES AS IS WRITTEN IN THE BOOK OF ISAIAH 61:1-3. THIS IS WHAT THE LEGAL ISSUES NOW PLACED BEFORE THIS COURT REPRESENT, TO INCLUDE ALL OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. HE RESTORES ALL THINGS.

DUE TO THE EXTRAORDINARY AND NOVEL CLAIMS MADE WITHIN THIS CASE, AN UNPRECEDENTED EVENT. YOU HAVE OUR STATE AND FEDERAL GOVERNMENT IN ACTS OF FRAUD UPON THE COURT, MACHINATION, CRIMINAL CONSPIRACY AND OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE, COMPROMISING AND INFLUENCING THE PETITIONER'S HIRED ATTORNEY AND JUDGES WITHIN THE S.C. APPEALS COURT, WITH THE AID OF OTHER STATE AND FEDERAL ACTORS ACROSS MULTIPLE STATE AND FEDERAL JURISDICTIONS DOING EVERY THING IN THEIR POWER, EVEN CRIMINAL ACTS, TO PREVENT WHAT THEY KNOW IS THE REALIZATION OF RELIGIOUS PROPHECY FROM MANIFESTING ITSELF BEFORE THE WORLD COMPROMISING THE PETITIONER'S DIRECT

APPEAL. ADDITIONALLY, THEY ATTACKED THE OTHER INMATES CASES AND DUE PROCESS MATTERS INVOLVED, IN ACTS OF CRIMINAL CONSPIRACY, OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE AND RETALIATION IN VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. § 12203(a)(b) OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, BECAUSE THE PETITIONER AND THEY SOUGHT TO AID THE KING-KHALIFAH HAVE THE LEGAL ISSUES HEARD EVEN WITHIN OUR OWN PENDING CRIMINAL CASES AS BENEFICIARIES OF "THE TRUST". AS THE RIGHTFUL FIDUCIARY HEIR, KING, KHALIFAH, PROPHET, LAWGIVER, ESTABLISHED BY CONTRACT VIA THE SOLE CORPORATION, PROTECTED UNDER ARTICLE 1 SECTION 10 OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION, HE, JAHJAH AL MAHDI, HAS THE LEGAL RIGHT AND AUTHORITY TO END SAME SEX MARRIAGE GLOBALLY, BEING HIS INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY BY INHERITANCE, WHICH IS ALSO WHY THE STATE ACTORS AND JUDGES ENGAGED IN THE FRAUD AND OBSTRUCTION WITHIN MY DIRECT APPEAL TO PREVENT THIS ISSUE AND OTHER LEGAL ISSUES OF RELIGIOUS PROPHECY FROM BEING HEARD. THE COURTS CANNOT MAKE OR UNMAKE THE CONTRACT ESTABLISHED THOUSANDS OF YEARS BEFORE THIS NATION WAS FORMED BY THE SOLE CORPORATION WITH EX POST FACTO LAW. WRIT OF COMMISSION IS GIVEN TO ME. AS ACTING ATTORNEY GENERAL. I NOT ONLY ADDRESS ALL ISSUES RELATED TO MY CASE, BUT ALSO ALL OTHER MATTERS RELATED TO THE KING-KHALIFAH AND ALL PETITIONERS THAT ARE PARTIES WITHIN THESE RELATED STATE AND OR FEDERAL CASES. CLASS ACTION CERTIFICATION IS DEMANDED AS WELL.

JUDGE ALISON LEE CAME FROM PRESIDING OVER CASE 2013-CP-400-0084 TO GET A SECOND OPPORTUNITY TO ATTACK THESE CASES WHEN SHE FAILED IN THE RICHLAND COURT OF COMMON PLEAS WHERE SHE IS A DEFENDANT WITHIN THE PENDING FEDERAL CASES CREATING A CONSTITUTIONAL STRUCTURAL ERROR WHICH VOIDS THE S.C. COURT OF APPEALS JURISDICTION FOR DUE PROCESS VIOLATION, DUE TO THERE BEING NO WAY IN TELLING WHAT SORT OR THE MAGNITUDE OF THE INFLUENCE SHE HAD UPON THE DECISIONS OF THAT COURT AND JUDGES, CORRUPTING THE FOUNDATION AND WHOLE OF THE PROCEEDINGS, PLACING THE STATE IN FORFEITURE OF THE CAUSES PRESENTED BY SANCTIONS SOUGHT, REQUIRING THAT THE S.C. SUPREME COURT NOW ADDRESS ALL MATTERS AS IF NO REVIEW AT ALL OCCURRED IN THE S.C. APPEALS COURT DUE TO THE FRAUD AND STRUCTURAL ERROR. INASMUCH, (1) THERE ARE NOVEL

QUESTIONS OF LAW IN THIS CASE; (2) THERE IS A DISSENT BEING ARGUED INVOLVING JUDGE PLECONES OF THE S.C. SUPREME COURT RELATED TO THE STATE-v.-GENTRY CASE, WHERE FACTS NOW CLEARLY ESTABLISHED WOULD SERVE TO SUBSTANTIATE THAT JUDGE PLECONES WAS CORRECT IN HIS DISSENT. WE ARE ARGUING AGAINST THE PRECEDENT ESTABLISHED BY THE STATE v. GENTRY CASE; (3) THERE ARE SUBSTANTIAL CONSTITUTIONAL QUESTIONS INVOLVED WHERE WE ARE ARGUING AGAINST SEVERAL OTHER PRECEDENT SETTING CASES; (4) THERE ARE FEDERAL QUESTIONS INVOLVED, SUCH AS THOSE PROTECTED UNDER ARTICLE 1 SECTION 10 OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION AND WHERE THE ACTS OF THE S.C. COURT OF APPEALS STAND IN BLATANT DEFIANCE OF THE HOLDINGS MADE BY THE UNITED STATES SUPREME COURT UNDER WILLIAMS-v.-PENNSYLVANIA, 136 S.Ct. 1899, 195 L.Ed.2d. 132, 84 U.S.L.W. 4359(U.S.2016). THUS, THE GRANTING OF THE WRIT OF CERTIORARI BECOMES MANDATORY ESTABLISHING THIS CASE BEFORE THE SOUTH CAROLINA SUPREME COURT.

BY MY COMMISSION AS NEWLY APPOINTED ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE GLOBAL THEOCRATIC STATE, WITH ALL SUPERSEDING POWER AND AUTHORITY OF THE CROWN. I, JOSEPH TODD ROWLAND, AM COMMANDED BY WRIT OF THE KING-KHALIFAH TO BRING THESE MATTERS BEFORE THE S.C. SUPREME COURT IN ORDER THAT ALL RIGHTS, TITLES, PRIVILEGES AND DECREES OF THE KING-KHALIFAH OF THE (4) GLOBAL THRONES WHOSE SUPERSEDING ATTORNEY, JUDICIAL AND LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY IS BINDING UPON THE S.C. SUPREME COURT WHERE YOUR ATTORNEYS APPEARED IN CASE 2013-CP-400-0084 AND FAILED TO TIMELY RESPOND TO DEFEAT THE AFFIDAVITS OF DEFAULT AND VOIDING OF JURISDICTION AS ALSO DID THE S.C. ATTORNEY GENERAL'S ATTORNEY WHO ARE ONE IN THE SAME. ALL RIGHTS, TITLES AND PRIVILEGES ARE NOW PROTECTED BY THE DEFAULT AND ARTICLE 1 SECTION 10 OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND THE MANDATES OF DUE PROCESS LAW.

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