STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
IN THE SUPREME COURT

---

On Writ of Certiorari to the Court of Appeals  
Appeal from Charleston County  
Honorable Roger M. Young, Sr., Circuit Court Judge  
Appellate Case No. 2017-002108

---

**RECEIVED**

**DEC 15 2017**

**S.C. SUPREME COURT**

THE STATE,

Respondent,

vs.

JOSEPH TODD ROWLAND,

Petitioner.

---

**RETURN TO PETITION FOR WRIT OF CERTIORARI**

---

ALAN WILSON  
Attorney General

MARK R. FARTHING  
Assistant Attorney General

Post Office Box 11549  
Columbia, SC 29211  
(803) 734-3727

SCARLETT A. WILSON  
Solicitor, Ninth Judicial Circuit

O.T. Wallace Building  
101 Meeting Street, Suite 400  
Charleston, SC 29401  
(843) 958-1900

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

custody requirements in regard to the marijuana and cocaine when the drugs were offered into evidence. Thus, in Rowland's case, the only objection raised to the admission of the incriminating evidence discovered during the search of Rowland's residence was raised through a pre-trial motion in limine, the trial judge only ruled on the admissibility of that evidence in a preliminary fashion at the conclusion of a pre-trial in limine hearing, and defense counsel expressly waived any objection he had to the evidence when it was later introduced during trial. See State v. Dicapua, 373 S.C. 452, 455, 646 S.E.2d 150, 152 (Ct. App. 2007) ("Dicapua's sole objection to the videotape came in the form of a motion in limine to suppress the videotape because of its lack of audio. Once the State moved to enter the videotape into evidence and publish it to the jury, however, Dicapua's counsel specifically stated he had 'no objection.' We find this amounted to a waiver of any issue Dicapua had with the videotape."); see also State v. Stokes, 339 S.C. 154, 163, 528 S.E.2d 430, 434 (Ct. App. 2000) ("[T]he record reflects that this issue was only raised and ruled on in limine. Stokes never raised the issue again at any time during the trial. Merely raising an argument in limine does not preserve the issue for appellate review."). Under those circumstances, any issue regarding the admission of the marijuana, cocaine, and other incriminating evidence was not properly preserved for appellate review and could not properly be raised or addressed on appeal. See State v. Head, 330 S.C. 79, 87, 498 S.E.2d 389, 393 (Ct. App. 1997) (instructing an appellate court "cannot address unpreserved errors"). Accordingly, the Court of Appeals correctly affirmed Rowland's convictions on appeal. Rowland's petition for a writ of certiorari should be denied.

#### **B. Propriety of the Search Warrant**

The Fourth Amendment of the United States Constitution protects "[t]he right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and effects, against unreasonable searches

and seizures.” U.S. Const. amend. IV. Generally, in order for a search to be reasonable under the Fourth Amendment, a law enforcement officer must obtain a search warrant prior to conducting the search. Robinson v. State, 407 S.C. 169, 185, 754 S.E.2d 862, 870 (2014). In South Carolina, an officer seeking to obtain a search warrant must present a sworn affidavit to a judge presenting grounds sufficient to establish probable cause in order to justify the issuance of the warrant. State v. Bellamy, 336 S.C. 140, 143, 519 S.E.2d 347, 348-349 (1999); see S.C. Code Ann. § 17-13-140 (“A warrant issued hereunder shall be issued only upon affidavit sworn to before the magistrate, municipal judicial officer, or judge of a court of record establishing the grounds for the warrant.”); see also Illinois v. Gates, 462 U.S. 213, 238 (1983) (identifying probable cause as “a fair probability that contraband or evidence of a crime will be found”). In State v. Williams, 262 S.C. 186, 189, 203 S.E.2d 436, 437-438 (1974), this Court explained probable cause as it relates to the issuance of a search warrant:

In order to justify the issuance of a search warrant, probable cause must be shown, but the term ‘probable cause’ does not import absolute certainty. In determining whether there is sufficient evidence to sustain a finding of probable cause, each case stands on its own facts. The evidence need not be sufficient to support a conviction, or a verdict of guilty, or to establish guilt beyond a reasonable doubt; nor need the proof be positive, it being enough if it is such as to induce in the mind of the issuing officer an honest belief that the facts set forth exist, or as would lead a man of prudence to believe that the offense has been committed.

(citing State v. Bennett, 256 S.C. 234, 182 S.E.2d 291 (1971)).

In deciding whether to issue a search warrant, the issuing judge must “make a practical, common-sense decision whether, given all the circumstances set forth in the affidavit before him, including the ‘veracity’ and ‘basis of knowledge’ of persons supplying hearsay information, there is a fair probability that contraband or evidence of a crime will be found in a particular place.” Gates, 462 U.S. at 238. In making the probable cause determination, “[issuing judges] are concerned with probabilities and not certainties.” State v. Sullivan, 267 S.C. 610, 617, 230

S.E.2d 621, 624 (1976). Furthermore, the issuing judge must view the warrant affidavit in a common-sense and realistic fashion and give consideration to the fact such affidavits are typically prepared by non-lawyers in the haste of criminal investigations. State v. Arnold, 319 S.C. 256, 260, 460 S.E.2d 403, 405 (Ct. App. 1995); see United States v. Ventresca, 380 U.S. 102, 108 (1965) (“Technical requirements of elaborate specificity once exacted under common law pleadings have no proper place [when evaluating the sufficiency of search warrant affidavits].”).

When reviewing a decision to issue a search warrant, a reviewing court should decide whether the issuing judge had a substantial basis for concluding probable cause existed. State v. Dupree, 354 S.C. 676, 683, 583 S.E.2d 437, 441 (Ct. App. 2003). Applying the same standard as the issuing judge, the court should base its determination on the totality of circumstances and afford great deference to the issuing judge’s probable cause determination. State v. Keith, 356 S.C. 219, 223, 588 S.E.2d 145, 147 (Ct. App. 2003). Significantly, “[s]earches based on warrants will be given judicial deference to the extent that an otherwise marginal search may be justified if it meets a realistic standard of probable cause.” Dupree, 354 S.C. at 683-684, 583 S.E.2d at 441; see Ventresca, 380 U.S. at 106 (“[I]n a doubtful or marginal case a search under a warrant may be sustainable where without one it would fall.”). “Suppression is appropriate in only a few situations, including when an affidavit is ‘so lacking in indicia of probable cause as to render official belief in its existence entirely unreasonable.’ ” State v. Weston, 329 S.C. 287, 293, 494 S.E.2d 801, 804 (1997) (quoting United States v. Leon, 468 U.S. 897, 923 (1984)).

In the case at bar, the information included in the search warrant affidavit established the officers had received numerous tips in regard to drug activity taking place at 31 Woodleaf Court. Cf. State v. Kinloch, 410 S.C. 612, 618, 767 S.E.2d 153, 156 (2014) (finding the receipt of

numerous tips regarding drug activity to be relevant under the totality of the circumstances towards establishing a probable cause basis for a search). Additionally, the information in the search warrant affidavit established the officers corroborated those tips by conducting surveillance and observing Rowland engaged in what appeared to be drug transactions to the trained and skilled officers. See id. (finding a substantial basis for probable cause existed where the officers observed “**seemingly** drug-related behavior” (emphasis added)); State v. Adams, 291 S.C. 132, 134, 352 S.E.2d 483, 485 (1987) (“[T]he evidence of a contemporaneous drug deal cited in the warrant’s supporting affidavit was a sufficient basis for the determination of probable cause under the totality of the circumstances.”); see also United States v. Cortez, 449 U.S. 411, 418 (1981) (“[A] trained officer draws inferences and makes deductions – inferences and deductions that might well elude an untrained person.”). Furthermore, the information in the search warrant affidavit established the officers stopped the driver of a vehicle who had just engaged in a hand-to-hand transaction with Rowland, discovered marijuana and cocaine during that stop, and were informed by the driver he had just purchased the drugs from Rowland at 31 Woodleaf Court. See Keith, 356 S.C. at 224, 588 S.E.2d at 147 (“We find the portion of the affidavit related to the investigative surveillance, stop, and seizure of illegal drugs from Keith’s car standing along sets forth sufficient information to support a probable cause finding in this case.”); see also State v. Jenkins, 790 So. 2d 626, 627 (La. 2001) (holding a search warrant authorizing a search of a residence was properly issued and supported by probable cause where the investigating officers included information in the search warrant affidavit establishing they observed what appeared to be a hand-to-hand transaction take place on the porch of the targeted residence, they stopped a person involved in the transaction after that person left the residence, and they seized a plastic bag containing vegetable matter from that person).

Based on that information, the magistrate reasonably concluded – and had a substantial basis to conclude – there was a fair probability drugs and other incriminating evidence would be found at Rowland’s residence. See Kinloch, 410 S.C. at 618, 767 S.E.2d at 156 (“We find based on these facts that the Court of Appeals erred in affirming the circuit court’s suppression ruling as the magistrate had a substantial basis for reaching his probable cause determination.”); cf. United States v. Rose, 321 F. App’x 324, 326-327 (4th Cir. 2009) (finding probable cause for the issuance of a search warrant existed where officers conducted surveillance at the targeted residence, observed traffic consistent with drug activity there, stopped an individual who left the residence shortly after arriving, and were advised by the individual he had just purchased crack cocaine from the residence). As a result, the magistrate was justified in issuing the search warrant for Rowland’s residence, the trial judge properly denied Rowland’s motion to suppress the evidence discovered during the search of the residence, and the Court of Appeals correctly affirmed Rowland’s convictions. See Dupree, 354 S.C. at 691, 593 S.E.2d at 445 (“The magistrate had ample probable cause to issue the warrant. Given all the circumstances set forth in the affidavit, there was a ‘fair probability’ that crack cocaine would be found in the mobile home.”); see also Gates, 462 U.S. at 238 (“The task of the issuing magistrate is simply to make a practical, common-sense decision whether, given all the circumstances set forth in the affidavit before him, including the ‘veracity’ and ‘basis of knowledge’ of persons supplying hearsay information, there is a fair probability that contraband or evidence of a crime will be found in a particular place.”). Rowland’s petition for a writ of certiorari should be denied.

## II.

**Aside from the issue related to the admission of the evidence discovered during the search of his residence, none of the other issues raised in Rowland's petition for a writ of certiorari were even arguably raised to the Court of Appeals, and, therefore, none of those issues can appropriately be raised to this Court through a petition for a writ of certiorari.**

In addition to his arguable challenge to the Court of Appeals's decision to affirm the ruling admitting the evidence discovered during the search of his residence, Rowland appears to be attempting to raise a total of nine other issues through his petition for a writ of certiorari. Amongst those issues, Rowland appears to be maintaining his indictments were somehow invalid, multiple judges engaged in a conspiracy related to a religious prophesy, the trial judge erred in a variety of different ways that were never previously raised on appeal, and this Court somehow erred in connection to same-sex marriage and another unrelated case while also engaging in acts of intentional fraud. Importantly, none of those issues was raised to the Court of Appeals. Therefore, those issues cannot properly be raised to this Court through a petition for a writ of certiorari under the mandates of the South Carolina Appellate Court Rules. Accordingly, Rowland's petition for a writ of certiorari should be denied.

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